GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

Board of Directors

Friday, April 1, 2011
Immediately Following
CAA Operations Committee Meeting
Kent County Commission Chambers
300 Monroe, NW — Grand Rapids, MI

AGENDA
Convention L Call to Order
Arena
Authority IL The Rapid 20-Year Master Plan — George Heartwell, Jennifer Kalczuk
Steven Heocock, IIl.  Approve March 4, 2011, Meeting Minutes Action
Chairman
Birgit Klohs IV.  Committee Reports
Floyd Wilson, Jr A. Operations Committee
Gary Mclnerney i. Report from Experience Grand Rapids Information
George Heartwell B. Finance Committee
Joseph Tomaselli i. SMG February 2011 Financial Statements - Action
lew Chamberlin DeVos Place® and Van Andel Arena®
ii. CAA February 2011 Financial Statements Action
V. SMG Report and Facilities Calendars Information

VI Public Comment

VII. Adjournment

Next Meeting Date: Friday, May 6, 2011, immediately following the
CAA Finance Committee meeting

- .l.h

VAN ANDEL

2 E

A DFEVOSPLACE
- -

Van Andel Arenae DeVos Place®
130 West Fulton 303 Monroe Ave. NW
Grand Rapids, Ml 49503-2601 Grand Rapids, MI 49503-2233
616.742.6600 616.742.6

0O
OO

.742 .65
Fax 616.742.6197 Fax 616.742.65




Item III

MINUTES OF THE GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY
CONVENTION/ARENA AUTHORITY
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
Friday, March 4, 2011

L. Call to Order

Steve Heacock, Chairperson, called the meeting to order at 8:35 a.m. Secretary/Treasurer Birgit Klohs
recorded the meeting minutes.

Attendance

Members Present: Steve Heacock, Chair

Lew Chamberlin
Birgit Klohs
Floyd Wilson, Jr.

Members Absent: George Heartwell
Gary Mclnerney
Joe Tomaselli

Staff/Others: Scott Atchison Michigan Flashcard
David Czurak Grand Rapids Business Journal
Jim Day Kent County
Brian Dykema Interested Citizen
Jay Fowler Downtown Development Authority
Brian Harris Downtown Development Authority
George Helmstead Experience Grand Rapids
Chris Machuta SMG
Rich MacKeigan SMG
Doug Small Experience Grand Rapids
Susan Waddell CAA
Jana Wallace City of Grand Rapids
Jim Watt SMG

IL. DDA Framework for the Future

Jay Fowler and Brian Harris of the Downtown Development Authority presented the findings of the
DDA’s 2011 plan, Framing the Future. The purpose of the study was to lay a plan to better allocate
resources. The collaborative process involved all taxing jurisdictions and downtown stakeholders.
Several working committees were established to focus on different areas (e.g., economic development,
transportation). Community forums were held to express priorities and an on-line survey was available.
The process involved over 1,400 participants. The DDA will evaluate projects and allocate its budget in
three categories: economy, environment, and experience.

The vision for a vital downtown includes prosperous, livable, walkable, inclusive, green, connected, and
distinctive. A prosperous downtown will include a thriving retails, community venture and innovation
component, and residential and mixed-use development. Downtown will be a comfortable and enjoyable



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
March 4, 2011 -2

place to be through river activation, accessibility and connections, and infrastructure and streetscape.
Visitors will experience unique places, spaces, events, and culture in a downtown that is clean and safe.

I11. Minutes of Prior Meeting

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Minutes of the February 4,
2011, meeting of the Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority. The motion carried
unanimously.

V. Committee Reports

a. Operations Committee

Mr. Chamberlin stated that he attended the recent Lady Gaga concert and the Arena concourse expansion
functioned really well, as well as enhancing the festive atmosphere. Scott Gorsline presented a Griffins
hockey update. The bad news is that the Griffins team in last place in the division. The good news is that
only7 points separate the first and last teams. Attendance this year is holding steady. The group sales
have increased, season tickets have decreased, and single ticket purchases have remained flat.

Mr. Small stated that, in January, Grand Rapids hotel revenue increased 17% over last January and
occupancy increased 15.4% over last year. The annual meeting for Experience Grand Rapids is

scheduled for March 30, 11:30a.m., in DeVos Performance Hall. Mr. Helmstead provided an overview of
the CVB’s recent sales activities, marketing efforts, and major bid presentations.

b. Finance Committee
i. Consolidated Financial Statements for the Period Ended December 31, 2010

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the Period Ended December 31, 2010. The motion carried unanimously.

ii. SMG January 2011 Financial Statements for DeVos Place®
and Van Andel Arena®

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Wilson, moved to approve the SMG Financial Statements for
DeVos Place® and the Van Andel Arena® for the period ended January 31, 2011. After review and
discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

iii. CAA January 2011 Financial Statements

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Wilson, moved to approve the CAA Financial Statements for the
period ended January 31, 2011. After review and discussion, the motion carried unanimously.

V. Sculpture Donation and Display Agreement

Chair Heacock stated that the Peter Secchia family has funded and endowed the Community Legends
Project that honors individuals who helped shape Grand Rapids, by commissioning sculptures that are
donated to the city or a nonprofit. The Community Legends Program has commissioned renowned artist
J. Brett Grill to sculpt a statue of Jay van Andel that would be donated to the CAA and displayed on the
plaza of the Van Andel Arena®. The gift is subject to a Sculpture Donation and Display Agreement.



Convention/Arena Authority Meeting
March 4, 2011 -3

Motion: Ms. Klohs, supported by Mr. Chamberlin, moved to approve the Sculpture Donation and
Display Agreement. The motion carried unanimously.

VI SMG Report and Facilities Calendar

Dr. Jim Fahner and Marcie Hillary of Hospice of Michigan attended the meeting to pay tribute to Rich
MacKeigan, who has served on the Hospital Board for the past ten years.

Mr. MacKeigan presented a summary of the upcoming events that will be held at DeVos Place® and the
Van Andel Arena®. Gary Mclnerney is improving tremendously and has been released from the
hospital. Gary is recuperating at his Florida home and would appreciate hearing from CAA Board
members.

VII. Public Comment

None.

VIII. Next Meeting Date

The date for next CAA Board meeting is Friday, April 1, 2011, in the Kent County Commission
Chambers, Kent County Administration Building, 300 Monroe Avenue, NW, immediately following the
CAA Operations Committee meeting. Staff will be taking an attendance poll, since that date is the Friday
before spring break.

X. Adjournment

There being no other business, the meeting adjourned at 9:30 a.m.

Birgit M. Klohs, Recording Secretary



DE VOS PLACE

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facliity

Item IV.B.i.




DE VOS PLACE
ROLLING FORECAST

FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

NO. EVENTS
ATTENDANCE

DIRECT EVENT REVENUE
ANCILLARY REVENUE

TOTAL EVENT REVENUE

TOTAL OTHER REVENUE

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE
FINANCE
MARKETING
OPERATIONS

EVENT SERVICES
BOX OFFICE

SALES

OVERHEAD

TOTAL OPERATING EXP.

NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES

INCENTIVE FEE

NET OPERATING REVENUE OVER

OPERATING EXPENSES

Comments:

TOTAL BUDGET
YTD Actual Roll FYE FYE VARIANCE
325 175 500 494 6
337,989 208,914 546,903 531,500 15,403
1,577,406 890,163 2,467,569 2,409,380 58,189
1,312,243 651,577 1,963,820 1,907,266 56,554
2,889,649 1,541,740 4,431,389 4,316,646 114,743
116,031 76,768 192,799 190,950 1,849
3,005,680 1,618,508 4,624,188 4,507,596 116,592
103,482 61,555 165,037 169,612 4,575
162,397 67,441 229,838 221,935 (7,903)
48,475 49,060 97,535 103,669 6,134
863,227 536,491 1,399,718 1,485,525 85,807
595,960 284,363 880,323 866,676 (13,647)
60,803 31,290 92,093 79,211 (12,882)
227,438 118,689 346,127 355,664 9,537
1,370,553 662,987 2,033,540 1,936,247 (97,293)
3,432,336 1,811,876 5244211 5,218,539 (25.,672)
(426,656) (193,368) (620,023) (710,943) 90,920
- 0 -
(426,656) (193,368) (620,023) (710,943) 90,920

February concludes another successful month for DeVos Place
as the facility continues to perform ahead of budget and consistent

with prior year overall.




DE VOS PLACE
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS
FOR MONTH ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date
as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH February February February

Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 43 43 48
Attendance 92,420 78,921 93,570
Direct Event Income $372,727 $352,252 $355,465
Ancillary Income 233,595 177,635 246,360
Other Income 15,718 19,747 10,130
Indirect Expenses (479,019) (434,879) (464,669)
Net Income $143,021 $114,755 $147,286
YTD YTD 2011 YTD 2011 YTD 2010

Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 325 318 328
Attendance 337,989 342,223 346,725
Direct Event Income $1,577,406 $1,514,279 $1,580,773
Ancillary Income 1,312,243 1,207,629 1,190,315
Other Income 116,031 116,535 106,391
Indirect Expenses (3,432,336) (3,479,032) (3,303,849)
Net Income ($426,656) ($640,589) ($426,370)
EVENT INCOME

Event income came in ahead of budget overall. Most events held during the month were

either consistent or slightly ahead of budget leading to this overage.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in ahead of budget overall. Most of the excess came from spending
associated with the Auto Show as vendors spent more money in their area's than they had
the previous couple of years.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in above budget for the month. Most of the increase due to utilities
with a colder month overall year to year.




Event Income

Direct Event Income
Rental Income
Service Revenue
Service Expenses

Total Direct Event Income

Ancillary Income
F&B Concession
F&B Catering
Novelty Sales
Booth Cleaning
Telephone/Long Distance
Electrical Services
Audio Visual
Internet Services
Equipment Rental

Total Ancillary Income
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event)

Total Other Event Income

Total Event Income

Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements
Other Income

Total Other Operating Income

Adjusted Gross Income

Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages
Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Labor Allocations to Events

Net Salaries and Benefits

Contracted Services
General and Administrative
Operations

Repair and Maintenance
Operational Supplies
Insurance

Utilities

SMG Management Fees

Total Operating Expenses

Net Income(Loss) From Operations

Other Non-Operating Expenses

Adjusted Net Income(Loss)

DeVos Place

Income Statement

For the Eight Months Ending February 28, 2011

Current Month  Current Month

CumrentMonth  Year to Date

Year to Date

Year to Date

Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
$381,072 $351,463 $29,609 $361,130 $1,683,040 $1,538,311 $144,729 $1,589,478
206,305 189,969 16,336 172,292 1,282,511 1,229,618 52,893 1,379,700
(214,850) (189,180) (25,470) (177,957) (1,388,145) (1,253,650) (134,495) (1,388,405)
372,727 352,252 20,475 355,465 1,577,406 1,514,279 63,127 1,580,773
31,322 28,915 2,407 27,542 93,645 78,106 15,539 77,298
28,525 28,246 279 49,205 389,617 356,555 33,062 318,317
394 1,518 (1,124) 147 3,765 7.284 (3,519) 6,779
79,033 50,110 28,923 65,975 186,664 165,497 21,167 156,767
0 3,682 (3,682) 1,125 225 13,174 (12,949) 2,363
54,367 35,251 19,116 59,802 281,309 272,687 8,622 285,398
17,415 10,861 6,554 21,496 200,847 173,568 27,279 211,121
8,677 4,540 4,137 7,933 43,975 27,335 16,640 29,003
13,862 14,512 (650) 13,135 112,196 113,423 (1,227) 103,269
233,595 177,635 55,960 246,360 1,312,243 1,207,629 104,614 1,190,315
14,124 14,914 (790) 7,706 88,364 77,871 10,493 80,831
14,124 14,914 (790) 7,708 88,364 77,871 10,493 80,831
620,446 544,801 75,645 609,531 2,978,013 2,799,778 178,234 2,851,919
1,322 2,000 (678) 1,802 13,345 16,000 (2,655) 14,531
272 2,833 (2,561) 622 14,322 22,664 (8,342) 11,029
1,594 4,833 (3,239) 2,424 27,667 38,664 (10,997) 25,560
622,040 549,634 72,406 611,955 3,005,680 2,838,443 167,237 2,877,479
227,792 225,288 2,504 210,886 1,833,091 1,802,304 30,787 1,797,180
74,513 58,848 15,665 64,388 510,334 470,784 39,550 480,361
(122,865) (122,456) (409) (104,683) (1,010,379) (979,648) (30,731) (992,031)
179,440 161,680 17,760 170,591 1,333,046 1,293,440 39,606 1,285,510
24,377 21,200 3,177 19,710 195,653 169,600 26,053 196,373
18,360 28,058 (9,698) 25,383 204,275 224,464 (20,189) 194,230
3,101 10,312 (7,211) 5,995 66,082 82,496 (16,414) 62,294
34,362 41,941 (7,579) 26,562 285,426 335,528 (50,102) 289,408
20,034 21,500 (1,466) 17,184 114,385 172,000 (57,615) 117,268
156,173 17,465 (2,292) 26,545 128,187 139,720 (11,5633) 155,442
170,804 119,500 51,304 159,476 998,337 956,000 42,337 897,543
13,368 13,223 145 13,223 106,945 105,784 1,161 105,781
479,019 434,879 44,140 464,669 3,432,336 3,479,032 (46,696) 3,303,849
143,021 114,755 28,266 147,286 (426,656) (640,589) 213,933 (426,370)
143,021 114,755 28,266 147,286 (426,656) (640,589) 213,933 (426,370)

s



SMG DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Year to Date Event Summary Report
For the Eight Months Ending February 28, 2011

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Event Type Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget
Convention/Trade Shows 78 78 79,418 97,500 1,132,914 1,109,472
Consumer/Gated Shows 34 34 93,038 92,173 593,668 615,060
Devos Performance Hall 100 93 106,008 108,500 583,475 539,236
Banquets 24 24 17,232 15,600 155,697 171,315
Meetings 58 58 18,577 14,500 301,874 171,042
Other 31 31 23,716 13,950 210,387 193,657
GRAND TOTALS 325 318 337,989 342,223 2,978,013 2,799,779
As Percentage of Overall
Convention/Trade Shows 24.00% 24.53% 23.50% 28.49% 38.04% 39.63%
Consumer/Gated Shows 10.46% 10.69% 27.53% 26.93% 19.94% 21.97%
Devos Performance Hall 30.77% 29.25% 31.36% 31.70% 19.59% 19.26%
Ballroom Exclusive 7.38% 7.55% 5.10% 4.56% 5.23% 6.12%
Meetings 17.85% 18.24% 5.50% 4.24% 10.14% 6.11%

Other 9.54% 9.75% 7.02% 4.08% 7.06% 6.92%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

DeVos Place
Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2011

ASSETS

1,707,330
1,127,456
137,184

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

52,486
159,319
73,578
2,006,918

(400,000)
946,593
559,729

(426,654)

$2,971,970

$2,971,970

$2,292,301

$679,668

$2,971,969




SMG - DeVos Place

Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority

Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of February 28, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days
Food & Beverage
Ticketing
Merchandise
Decorating
Audio/Visual
Van Andel Arena
Operating

Over 30 Days

Over 60 Days

Over 90 Days
Donnell Productions
Paragon Leather
Saigon Entertainment
Grinder Promotions

Total Accounts Receivable

59,847
547,748
567
79,032
17,414
(31,662)
243,045

123,457

72,874

5,736
2,110
5,002
2,286

1,127,456



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2010
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,045,426 (620,023) 425,403 916,360
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,045,426 (620,023) (274,597) 216,360

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Base Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 317,343
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,792,607 4,624,188 9,416,795 9,777,929
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 8,900,000
Revenue Excess (7,393) 424,188 416,795 877,929
Incentive Fee ** - - - 238,379
Total SMG Management Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 555,722

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



VAN ANDEL

GRAND RAPIDS

VAN ANDEL ARENA

FINANCIAL STATEMENT
FOR THE PERIOD ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2011

Distribution:

Grand Rapids — Kent County Convention / Arena Authority
Robert White

Bob McClintock

Lewis Dawley

Gary McAneney

Howard Feldman

Richard MacKeigan

Chris Machuta

An SMG Managed Facliity

Item IV.B.i.



VAN ANDEL ARENA
ROLLING FORECAST
FISCAL YEAR ENDING JUNE 30, 2011

YTD ROLL TOTAL BUDGET
FYE FYE VARIANCE

NO. EVENTS 75 25 100 111 (11)
ATTENDANCE 348,678 158,706 507,384 591,650 (84,266)
DIRECT EVENT INCOME 675,987 565,205 1,241,192 1,460,958 (219,766)
ANCILLARY INCOME 683,018 474,760 1,167,778 1,230,438 (72,660)
TOTAL EVENT INCOME 1,359,005 1,039,965 2,398,970 2,691,396 (292,426)
TOTAL OTHER INCOME 1,438,110 965,527 2,393,637 2,444,775 (51,138)
TOTAL INCOME 2,797,115 1,995,492 4,792,607 5,136,171 (343,564)
INDIRECT EXPENSES
EXECUTIVE 114,350 48,068 162,418 191,113 28,695
FINANCE 132,623 76,128 208,751 226,903 18,152
MARKETING 189,785 93,609 283,394 289,229 5,835
OPERATIONS 974,660 542,401 1,517,061 1,607,955 90,894
BOX OFFICE 75,733 47,223 122,956 133,630 10,674
LUXURY SEATING 41,608 33,249 74,857 87,276 12,419
SKYWALK ADMIN 15,969 4,174 20,143 23,956 3,813
OVERHEAD 916,783 441,818 1,357,601 1,366,494 8,893

TOTAL INDIRECT EXP. 2,460,513 1,286,670 3,747,181 3,926,556 179,375
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES 336,602 708,822 1,045,426 1,209,615 (164,189)
LESS INCENTIVE FEE 0 - -
NET REVENUE ABOVE EXPENSES AFTER INCENTIVE 336,602 708,822 1,045,426 1,209,615 (164,189)

Comments:

February saw the Arena host a very successful Monster Truck show

in which sales increased over 10% when compared to prior year. That
additional revenue helped offset some of the revenue not realized with
no concert hosted during the month. The Arena continues to perform
below budget overall for the fiscal year.




VAN ANDEL ARENA
FINANCIAL STATEMENT HIGHLIGHTS

FOR MONTH ENDED FEBRUARY 28, 2011

The following schedule summarizes operating results for both the current month and Year to Date

as compared to budget and prior year:

MONTH February February February
Actual Budget FY 2010
Number of Events 11 13 13
Attendance 60,848 62,500 73,177
Direct Event Income $94,674 $106,781 $222,198
Ancillary Income 115,092 135,890 178,427
Other Income 167,846 193,747 246,929
Indirect Expenses (318,629) (327,214) (308,602)
Net Income $58,983 $109,204 $338,952
YTD YTD 2011 YTD 2011 YTD 2010
Actual Budget Prior Year
Number of Events 75 81 70
Attendance 348,678 395,500 388,543
Direct Event Income $675,987 $990,364 $976,450
Ancillary Income 683,018 810,178 885,804
Other Income 1,438,110 1,569,311 1,626,525
Indirect Expenses (2,460,513) (2,617,712) (2,443,852)
Net Income $336,602 $752,141 $1,044,927

EVENT INCOME

Event income came in a little behind budget overall as no concerts were hosted during the month.

Events hosted performed very well.

ANCILLARY INCOME

Ancillary income came in below budget due to the lack of concerts, per caps in all areas continue
to perform at or above expected levels.

INDIRECT EXPENSES

Indirect expenses came in at expected levels for the month.




Van Andel Arena
Income Statement

For the Eight Months Ending February 28, 2011

Current Month Current Month Current Month Year to Date  Year to Date Year to Date
Actual Budget Variance Prior Year Actual Budget Variance Prior Year
Event Income
Direct Event Income
Rental Income $166,816 $172,137 (5,321) $248,580  $1,063,302 $1,337,045 (273,743) $1,221,886
Service Revenue 42,833 63,266 (20,433) 216,126 1,082,588 979,667 102,921 1,221,226
Service Expenses (114,975) (128,622) 13,647 (242,508)  (1,469,903)  (1,326,348) (143,555)  (1,466,662)
Total Direct Event iIncome 94,674 106,781 (12,107) 222,198 675,987 990,364 (314,377) 976,450
Ancitlary Income
F&B Concession 102,808 109,165 (6,357) 142,727 583,526 672,118 (88,592) 733,151
F&B Catering 7,264 6,237 1,027 14,407 42,858 47,331 (4,473) 61,086
Novelty Sales 500 15,868 (15,368) 16,773 34,361 66,089 (31,728) 64,069
Booth Cleaning 0 0 0 0 355 0 355 265
Audio Visual o] 0 0 0 18 0 18 23
Other Ancillary 4,520 4,620 (100) 4,520 21,900 24,640 (2,740) 27,210
Total Ancitlary Income 115,092 135,890 (20,798) 178,427 683,018 810,178 (127,160) 885,804
Other Event Income
Ticket Rebates(Per Event) 26,688 30,410 (3,722) 70,403 195,623 242,885 (47,262) 257,867
Total Other Event Income 26,688 30,410 (3,722) 70,403 195,623 242,885 (47,262) 257,867
Total Event Income 236,454 273,081 (36,627) 471,028 1,554,628 2,043,427 (488,799) 2,120,121
Other Operating Income
Luxury Box Agreements 86,850 104,337 (17,487) 125,936 827,151 854,426 (27,275) 934,341
Advertising 44,000 52,083 (8,083) 44,000 366,724 416,664 (49,940) 388,534
Other Income 10,308 6,917 3,391 6,590 48,612 55,336 (6,724) 45,783
Total Other Operating Income 141,158 163,337 (22,179) 176,526 1,242,487 1,326,426 (83,939) 1,368,658
Adjusted Gross Income 377,612 436,418 (58,806) 647,554 2,797,115 3,369,853 (572,738) 3,488,779
Operating Expenses
Salaries and Wages 126,567 160,183 (33,616) 166,102 1,207,310 1,281,464 (74,154) 1,208,030
Payroll Taxes and Benefits 41,350 42,846 (1,496) 46,413 308,953 342,768 (33,815) 308,670
Labor Allocations to Events (37,867) (72,446) 34,579 (88,579) (486,784) (579,568) 92,784 (526,092)
Net Salaries and Benefits 130,050 130,583 (533) 122,936 1,029,479 1,044,664 (15,185) 990,608
Contracted Services 18,901 21,300 (2,399) 18,647 158,557 170,400 (11,843) 160,439
General and Administrative 19,886 30,742 (10,856) 26,946 213,524 245,936 (32,412) 229,415
Operations 2,903 4,996 (2,093) 1,969 15,504 39,868 (24,464) 17,223
Repair and Maintenance 12,342 17,943 (5,601) 10,445 92,181 143,544 (51,363) 108,978
Operational Supplies 10,618 19,883 (9,265) 8,548 122,339 159,064 (36,725) 98,024
Insurance 11,033 11,394 (361) 16,135 88,262 91,152 (2,890) 103,017
Utilities 99,528 77,150 22,378 89,753 633,222 617,200 16,022 630,367
SMG Management Fees 13,368 13,223 145 13,223 107,445 105,784 1,661 106,781
Total Operating Expenses 318,629 327,214 (8,585) 308,602 2,460,513 2,617,712 (157,199) 2,443,852
Net Income(Loss) From Operations 58,983 109,204 (50,221) 338,952 336,602 752,141 (415,539) 1,044,927
Other Non-Operating Expenses
Adjusted Net Income{Loss) 58,983 109,204 (50,221) 338,952 336,602 752,141 (415,539) 1,044,927

=



SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Event Summary
For the Eight Months Ended February 28, 2011

Event Type

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games
Other

GRAND TOTALS

As Percentage of Overall

Family Show
Sporting Event
Concert

Team Home Games

Other

Events/Days Attendance Total Event Income
Actual Budget Actual Budget Actual Budget

14 16 32,347 30,500 130,968 154,164

9 13 42,450 54,500 315,398 357,655

7 12 51,739 96,500 429,185 904,139

32 32 175,385 176,000 391,847 381,696

13 8 46,757 38,000 287,230 245,773

75 81 348,678 395,500 1,554,628 2,043,427
18.67% 19.75% 9.28% 7.71% 8.42% 7.54%
12.00% 16.05% 12.17% 13.78% 20.29% 17.50%
9.33% 14.81% 14.84% 24.40% 27.61% 44.25%
42.67% 39.51% 50.30% 44.50% 2521% 18.68%
17.33% 9.88% 13.41% 9.61% 18.48% 12.03%



Current Assets
Cash

Account Receivable
Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Assets

Total Assets

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Deferred Income

Advanced Ticket Sales & Deposits

Total Current Liabilities

Other Liabilities

Equity

Funds Remitted to CAA
Expenses Paid Direct by CAA
Beginning Balance Equity
Current Year Equity

Total Equity

Total Liabilities and Equity

Van Andel Arena
Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2011

ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

5,868,931
550,343
260,295
$6,679,569
$6,679,569
181,547
421,669
1,459,297
3,663,890
$5,726,402
(1,000,000)
588,681
1,027,882
336,604
$953,167
$6,679,569




SMG - Van Andel Arena
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Summary of Accounts Receivable
As of February 28, 2011

Current - Under 30 Days

Food & Beverage 219,607

Ticketing 131,131

Merchandise -

Permanent Advertising -

DeVos Place 31,662

Operating 98,983
Over 30 Days 35,960
Over 60 Days 33,000
Over 90 Days

Total Accounts Receivable 550,343



SMG - Van Andel Arena & DeVos Place
Grand Rapids - Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Management Fee Summary
Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 2011

MANAGEMENT FEE SUMMARY

Arena DeVos Place Total FY 2010
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Net Revenue above Expenses 1,045,426 (620,023) 425,403 916,360
Benchmark 700,000 700,000
Excess 1,045,426 (620,023) (274,597) 216,360

Incentive Fee Calculation (Only if above greater than zero)

Arena DeVos Place Total Total
Estimate Estimate Estimate Actual
Base Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 317,343
Incentive Fee
Revenue 4,792,607 4,624,188 9,416,795 9,777,929
Benchmark Revenue 4,800,000 4,200,000 9,000,000 8,900,000
Revenue Excess (7,393) 424,188 416,795 877,929
Incentive Fee ** - - - 238,379
Total SMG Management Fee 160,417 160,417 320,834 555,722

** Incentive fee is 25% of the first $500,000 in excess, 30% of remaining capped at base fee amount.



s Item IV.B.ii.
GRAND RAPIDS-KENT COUNTY

|

CONVENTION / ARENA AUTHORITY

ENTERTAINMENT. COCNVENTION, SHOW & SPORTE FAGILITIES

Memorandum
To: CAA Board
CAA Finance Committee
From: Robert J. White
Subject: February 28, 2011, Administrative Financial Statements
Date: March 28, 2011

The attached Balance Sheet and Income Statement have been reformatted to provide additional
information concerning the Convention/Arena Authority administrative account (unconsolidated) —
excluding facility manager financial activity (separately reported).

The Balance Sheet includes a two-year comparative financial position at February 28 for fiscal years
2010 and 2011. The Income Statement provides a line item comparison of accounts for the first eight
months of the current fiscal year as compared to a similar period in the prior fiscal year. In addition, the
Income Statement provides a comparison of current year budget to prior year (FY 2010) actual. It will
allow the reader to compare interim expenditure trends with full-year budgetary allowances.

Items of interest in the two financial statements are explained as follows:

Balance Sheet (Unconsolidated):

¢ The cash and investments position decreased by $1.3 million from February 28, 2010. Cash
balance decreased by $3.1 million from the June 30, 2010 position due to a quick start on
several capital improvement projects.

¢ Fund balance decreased by $1.3 million from the February 28, 2010 level.

Eight-Month Revenue/Expense:

e Parking revenues have decreased by (7.8%). January 2011 deposits, for DeVos Place®, were
delayed until March 3, 2011. Monthly deposits, for Area 2 parking (Van Andel Arena®), are
three months delinquent. When comparing like periods, the increase over prior years is +1.6%.
Revenues in this time period represents 60% of total annual.

* Interest income was budgeted (2% rate est.) to increase by 35%, but has declined by 39% from
actual experience in the first eight months of the prior fiscal year. The County Investment Pool
is currently paying less than 1% interest. It is now expected that interest earnings will come in
$225,000 under budget forecast.



e The “Utilities” expenditure account includes electric, gas, steam, and water/sewer for the
facilities. Electric represents 62% of the total. For the eight-month comparable time period, this
expense is increased by 19%.

o Parking management includes city staffing and equipment maintenance expense for the DeVos
Place® facility. When adjusted for like billing periods, this expense is reduced by almost 21%
from prior year. This reduction is a direct result of automation achieved in September 2009.

e Capital R/R/A spending is increased by 573% over prior year trend. Several major projects at the
Arena got off to a quick start.

e  Other significant expenditure account variances are primarily due to timing issues.

Hopefully, these reports provide a more on-point analysis of administrative activities over the course of
the fiscal year. These reports will be updated on a monthly basis.



Grand Rapids-Kent County Convention/Arena Authority
Balance Sheet (Unconsolidated)

February 28, 2011
2010 2011
Assets
Cash - Operating $ 110,153 $ 82,591
Investments - Kent County 21,548,126 20,288,000
Capital Assets (Net) 659,549 788,841
Total Assets $22,317,828 $ 21,159,432

Liabilities & Fund Balance

Accounts Payable $ 158,977 $ 266,020

Fund Balance 22,158,851 20,893,412

Total Liabilities & Fund Balance $22,317,828 $ 21,159,432




Apnys spaau [ended wus-3uof BUAIY UB 10§ 000 0SS JO 2UBMO[|e UR SSPN[IU]

9¢8I19°1T  $§ ¥6E8TLYT $

P6E£°8TL VT SSH611°¥T
(eLzy) (9c8°L6L7)  § (1ss‘0gs)  § (8€so11°¢) 6£6°309
PEll STLRTSY 78€°29T°T 1'901 929°0ST°L £98°816°¢
(8°02) 12LLl 88€°TT 1'8€ @ 000°601 1€0°9L
6T 196°€T £06°TC 8y 00042 £06°CT
00 - - 0001 000°5Z -
I'vp 0L9°S1 LLS 01 8991 000°0¥ 90161
(562 699°0t L99°LS (6%) 000°1L 8L9VL
¥'sT 9,68 SYLLY 9% ¥8Y°1¢€1 675°501
TELS 8LL°0E6T SSE‘sEY 9°6¥8 005°801°y LOVbEY
00 000°s2 000°67 00 000°sT 000°ST
(£€©) 0000 000°SL 00 000°SL 000°SL
00 - - 0001 000°001 -
9¢ £01°SS SLI‘ES 90 005°€S SLI‘ES
1'% 0LTY1 89L°6 0'TLS 00006 £6€°€1
(9°62) 18667 68T ro0) 000°s8 8YE'Ss
(6:2¢) $81°89 0L9°101 (s°0¢) esll 1§9°1L1
1ol 118TLY1 THT8EE] (o) 008°L61°C 786°99¢°T
€Ll 688°0£0°T 1€8°1€L°] 0 830°VE1Y T08°LT1'Y
(+'28) YLY'S 081°1¢€ (5°89) 000°0€ L1T°S6
(£°6¢€) LS6°LTI $S6°01C 6'v€ 000°SEY e
(82) 8SH L6Y 969°6€S L8 919°786 6L6°€06
¥LY 000°00t'T  $ 000°0s6 $ (¢ TLY'989T  $  ¥81°908°C $
aduey) SUT- /L SUT- /L aguey) 1e3png N0y
a8upuadtag 1107 Ad 0107 Ad a8sjuddIRd 1102 Ad 0107 Ad
3)8(-0-183X Jenuuy

TT07 ‘8T A1eniqay papug SYUON 131y 3y 104
duejeg pung ui saduey)) pue s2INIPUIAXY ‘SaNUIAIY JO UM VIS
LLIOPNY BUAIY/UONUIAUG) AHuno)) Juddf-spidey] pueis)

@

SUONIPPV/AUSWSOR[ASY/11eddy - v/ I/
N
‘SALON

portad jo pud ‘adoueeqg

po1sad jo Suruuidaq ‘aduejeg
saanipuadxyg A0

SINUIANY JO (LouddI) SSIXY

saamipuadxy 10
JoyiQ/sanddng -
JoueInsyj -
MUY JO JUSWIAINJ01J -
sAnEnIU] ANISISAL(] -
SIOIAIRS JBUOISSDJOI] -
sjyauag/sadep -
uohensuIwpy
sjoafoid fende) -
Vg rende)
UOISSSIUIwo)) spodg -
dAD -
ugredure) -
Sunayrep -
SWSSasSy I -
Suideospue -
Kjayes ueLnsapad -
juswaSeuely Supjred -
samnn -
suonersdO
:saampipuadxyg

SINUIAY [8I0,
SNOSUR[[SISIA
1Sa19u]
Buppred
DINS wol s1vjsuel]
+SINUIAY



VAN ANDEL ARENA® WEEKLY Item V
DATE EVENT EC | MOD ROOM TIME FUNCTION
Wed, Mar 30 | Available
Thur, Mar 31 | Available
Fri, Apr 1 Available
Sat, Apr2 Bob Seger GC | JIM Arena 8:00 PM Performance
Arbor Mortgage DG Arbor Mortgage Club | 7P-10:30P Contest winner’s banquet
Sun, Apr 3 Available
Mon, Apr 4 Available
Tue, Apr 5 Celtic Woman GC | JIM Arena 7:30 PM Performance
Wed, Apr 6 Available
Thur, Apr 7 Available
Fri, Apr 8 Griffins vs Abbotsford Heat | GC | EDDIE | Arena 10A-12:30P | Team practice
6:00 PM Doors
7P-9:30P Hockey game
WMSHP DG Banquet B 6P-7P Banquet
W MI Young Professionals Banquet C 6P-7P Banquet
West Side Beer East Nest 6P-9:30P Banquet
Van Andel-Flikkema West Nest/Suite 101A | 6P-9:30P Banquet
Jennifer Wooten MOS Corner Office 6P-9:30P 40" birthday party
One Communications Crease Club 6P-9:30P Banquet
Sat, Apr 9 Available
Sun, Apr 10 Available
Mon, Apr 11 | Available
Tue, Apr 12 Available
Wed, Apr 13 | Get Motivated GC Arena 8:00 AM Load-in
Thur, Apr 14 | Get Motivated GC | ROD Arena 8A-4:45P Seminar
Fri, Apr 15 Upscale Urban Nightz DG 5/3 Bank Vault 9P-2A Urban mixer
Sat, Apr 16 Available
Sun, Apr 17 Available
Mon, Apr 18 | Available
Tue, Apr 19 Available
Wed, Apr 20 | Available
Thur, Apr 21 | Available
Fri, Apr 22 Available
Sat, Apr 23 Available
Sun, Apr 24 @
Available
Mon, Apr 25 | Available
Tue, Apr 26 Available
Wed, Apr27 | Available
Thur, Apr 28 | Available
Fri, Apr 29 Available
Sat, Apr 30 Grand Valley State University | GC | KATHY | Arena 10:00 AM Commencement ceremony
3:00 PM Commencement ceremony
Sun, May 1 Davenport University GC Arena 2:00 PM Commencement ceremony




[1/6T/€

d-v wooljied = d-V 11vd

[[eH 9ouBULIOLId] SOAST = Ad
O-V Sl[eH #qyxg = DV HA

Swooy Sunedjy 0[O = d-V NOW
H-V swooy Sunesjp JooHsAQ = H-V O

d-V YOO[IRAQ J0AR] = J-V OY
ealy A1|[en pueln = DO
J-V swooy Sunsoly Aso[[en pueld = J-V O

081 FONVANILLY 1S3

AV

INO Ao
yount/wesboid

Buneag youn
uonensibay
Noayopunog

|EAllY JOjel003Q/ JusliD

wdog:e — wdog:)
wdgy: | — wepg:i )
weQe:L L

wepo:L L

wepo:0L

weQQ:8

lleH @2oueuuoled SOASQ
lleH @doueuuouad soraq
lleH @oueuouad SOASQ

Aqqo Jojeay)
lleH @oueuLouad SoAaQ
lleH aouewLoNad SoAsq

ONLLIIN TVANNY SAIdVE ANVID JONIIIIdXT

ul-peo v
ul-peo Jouqiyx3
[EALIY JUBND

wdpo:g-wdoo:Z1
wdpo:g-wdoo:Z}
wepo:1 1

g-v wooljieg ‘099 ‘99
ad wooljjeg
a-v swooljieg

“HONTUTINOD TVNNNY

1107 NTIJTIHD ONNOA 40’33 FHL JOJ D0SSV TN 0¢ AVIN 'dIm

1Ied) InO peo uonoNpo.d
Jauuig

wooljeg o) uado s100Q
Jauuiq Jadjunjon

Jauuig mar)

wdoo:6
wdog:g - wdgL:9
wdgl:9
wdpo:s
wdoo:s

gV swooJjieg
gy swooJjeg
gy swooljeg
-V SWooy 80JuUoW
-V SWooy S0JUo

uopoung
S8JANS0,p SIOY PUe SHULP dIA wdoo:Z2 — wd Gy 3ld MOOUaAQ JaAly
uoIsseg wdoo:2 — wdgy:t 4)00)JaA0 Janiy
19\ PUE B3] / uonessibay BIY023g /Aqqo Usiopn
|esieayay wdoo:Z — wdgy:p gy swooljeq
|esieayay yoa| wdoo:9 -wdoo:v gy swooljjeg
wdoo:e
swoou Buipjoy oo wdoo:0) — wdoo:¢ ay Wwooy S0Juoiy
jeAlle ia)|D / dn-jag wego:g YINNIA
009 FONVANTLLV "1S9 vda Ul peoT uoionpold weQo:g NOILLVIFITID YT LOVIVHD ONIATING S1NOJSA0E
dnjag suonesado wdg Jayy
AV Ul Ao wdg — wdy |leH 8dueuuouad ONILITN TVANNY SAIdVY ANV YD FJONIIIdXT
nQ a0 wdoo:8 O lleH ¥qiyx3
PUB UMO(] Jed] ‘SapNOuUo0?) JUdA] wdgo:z-wdpg:9 a pue 5 Aigjjes) puels)
sse|) doysspopn
aland ay} 0} usdQ O IIeH HaIyx3 wdo0:8-wdoo:9 O ifeH uquyx3
sse|n doysyopn wdg | :g-wdey:g @ pue 9 Aigjjes puelis
suadQ wooy AjejdsoH wdoo:s O lleH #qiyx3
Ao snqx3
0} uado/payaojun lleH qiyx3 wdoo:s O lieH )qiyx3
payoo
Ppue paso|9 s! J fieH uqiyx3 wdgo:g-weQe: | O lIeH ¥qiyx3
sasse|) doysx}iopn Weps:0L-weoe:ol 3'Qg ‘0 Asjle puetn
sasse|) doysHiop weQg:0l-wepo:0l 3'q ‘D Agjjes pueln
sosse|D) doysHop We0g:6-Weps:6 3 ‘g ‘9 Asjies) puels

000°6 FONVANFLLV 1S3

aljgnd o) uado |leq ¥qiux3
dn-jag/uj-peo Joyqiyx3
suadQ ealy AyjendsoH
dn-jag AyjendsoH Aemwy
|eALLY JUBID

wdpg: | L-wepe:
weQpg.g-wepo:8
weQoo-g
wegy./-wegL:/
weQo:-2

O lIeH 3qyx3
O lleH ¥quux3
O lleH ¥qiyx3
O lleH ¥qiyx3
D lIeH ¥qiyx3

1107 — ATHdIM dISIATY
BHOVTISOAEA

6C YVIN 'SANL

AIV4 FOFTI00 ONIYLS OVIVN




11/6T/¢

d-v woodjjed = -V T1vd

[[eH 29ueULIO] SOASd = Ad

O~V S[[eH 1qiyxd = DO-V Hd

swooy SunedIA 0O = 0-V NOW
H-V swooy Sunesy joo[H2A0 = H-V O

4-V J00lBAQ 10ATY = 4-V OY
vary A19|[eD pueln = DO

-V swiooy Suneol A1s[[e pueld = J-V O

0007 IONVANTLLY 1S3

va

Sjeipauua)u| - suibag uonaduwio)
Bunesyy salssey

uadp su00Q

ety ajBjuly

|eALLY 331350y

IBALLY JU3LD

InO peoT JoNqiyxg
[eALlY JU3ID

wegpo:6
wego:8
wegQ:8
wego:g
wegy:l

wdpQ:Z1-weQo:g
wege:/

Y IIBH ¥qiyx3

ao wood|jeg

odanr vsn

FONTITAINOD TVNNNY 1107 NTIATIHO
ONNOA 40 NOLLYONAT FHL 404 "DOSSV IN

000°Z IDONVANALLY '1S3

awi] pu3j ‘xoddy

Jowunr d4r) pue

Z ‘| sjepauusu| — sui-ybiapolusg
‘ejueg

‘ajuaane - suibag uonnadwo)
sajuowasan buiuado

Buneayy sassey

uadQ si00Q

[eAlY S13)UlyY

ALY 331353y

[BALLY JU3ID

wdoo:S
wdpo:zZ-wepo: |4

weQgo:6
wegg.g
wego:g
weQQ:8
wegQ:8
wegy: .
wegQ:2

VY IIBH 31qIux3

odnr vsn

¢ AdV 'LVS

SuUoISSagS wag0:--wago:L g wooljleg
suoljejuasald mmmuw 1B Enmv“n-EamwuN— Vv wooljjeg
SNOLEBA-SUOISSaG wdQo:t-wepg:ol H-Y 099 ‘'4¥ 99
lremary
IINd-YIAOTONVHI MIINO SdO | wdog:z)-wesL:ol g-v wooljjeg
uado suquyx3 wdog:g-wegL: 0} @D wooljjeg
uoISSag |BJBURD we0:01-wepe:g g-v wooljjeg FONTIFANOD TVANNY 110 NTIATHD
0057 IONVANTLLYV 183 | vd [BALLY JUB1ID wepo:2 d-v wooJjieg DONNOA J0 NOLLYONAd GHL YOd "D0SSV IN
30 doiqg sisyoes|g wdgo:Z1L

dn 188 w8y

ueH Jauueg

weQoe:g

Y lleH ¥qiux3

oanf vsn

1 4dV Idd

Ir YL Jep waid wego:0l V lleH yqiyx3 oanf vsn
LIy ¥Od .
aVv WoOoNT1vVE 13S3Y OL SdO | wdg saye awny Auy g ‘v wooljjeg
sSuoISsag wdpo:y-wdoo: L g wooljjeq
suonejuasald abels Jajuan wdgy:g-wdsy:z1 v wooljeg
SNOUEBA-SUOISSag wdoo:-wepg 0l H-V 099 ‘3-V 99
uadQ suqiyx3 wdog:g-wegL ol ao wooJjieg
lileamury

INd-43AOIONVHO MOIND SdO | wdog:zi-wes:0t g-v wooljjeg
uoISSag [eI8UdD) weQo:0L-wepe:8 g-v wooJjjeg

ui-peo’ Joyqiyx3 wegy.g-wepe: L ao wooJjieg “HINTYTINOD TVNINNY

0057 IONVANILLYY 1S3 |BALUY JUSIID wego:L Q-v wooljieg 1107 NTIATIHO ONNOA 40°'A3 FHL ¥OA'D0SSV TN | 1€ VI 'SINHL

110T — ATHIM ASIATYA
HOVTESOAECT




11/6T/¢€
-V wooijed = d-V T11vd
[[eH 2oueuLIOLIdd SOAS( = AQ
£ O-V S[[eH ¥qiyxqd = D-V HH

4~V 3O0OLBAQ 19A] = J-V OY
valy A1[[eD pueln = DO
J-V swooy] Sunesiy A1sj[en puein = J-V D

SWo0Y SunsajA 0O = -V NOW
H-V swooy] SuBssy JOOlsAQ = H-V O

JOVdS ONILIIN INd6S:TT-INV00:8 4-v DD
NS JOVIAOLS 65 11-INV00'8 dOVIOLS gHA SINVXT ONIYTINIONT STFON

N0 aAoN we-wd] | | ||eH 2oueuuopad sopeq
S80UBWLIONDY wdpp-wdy | jeH soueuuouad SOASQ
sdiysuoidwey) 1oy uado Buneag wdog:9 | I1eH soueuuouad sopeq
INO SNOW JOPUBA wdg-wdg #00Q UoA/q-Y S0Juoy
uado spqyx3 wdg-weg a-V 20Juoy
saouBuLIONad wdg):g — wepe:s | I1eH aoueuuopad SoAsQ
uonensibay wd;-weg £qa07 HdAQ
uado buneag weg | |leH soueUWOpad SOASQ
uadQ Aqqo weoe:g | I1leH soueuLopad SOARG
uadQ s100Qg apISINO weg | ||leH soueuuopad4 SOASQ
wooy dn uuep wdp|-weg HeH |enoay

000‘1 FIONVANALLY "LS3 AV abesojg ased wd| |-wez wooy asodindyny NOILVIDOSSY ANVE SSVIE NVIIITNY HLION 6 ddV 'LVS

_ onzan

=

FOVIOLS

dOVdS ONILITIN
FOVIAOLS

dn yoid sapies )

INO peo pue awi] pu3g xoiddy
ajeibaljjoD
SOJAON pue Jolunp 4 ‘Z ‘1

Nd6S:11-ANV00:8

Nd6S:11-Nd00: 1
Nd6S:11-NV00:8

Wd00:ZI-NV00-8 V JOINOW

WeQQ: | |-wego:0l

JOVIOLS gHd

1V 55
FOVIOLS gHI

N ONILIIN Nd00:ZI-NV00:8 vV 05D ONILIIN SYIOVNVIN ALID
s|esieayady wdg|-wdg | |eH sdoueuuouad SOASQ
u| anop wdg —wdz | {leH soueuuouad SOARQ
sjesieayay wdp}-wd} lIeH |exosy
uadQ syqux3 wdo}-wdy G-V 201Uop
sjesieayay wdz|-weg IleH [exosy

p:\4 U| A0\ JOpUSA wdz) — wey %00Q uoA7/g-y d0IUop NOILLVIODOSSY ANVE SSVIE NVIIIIINY HLION
JOVdS DONILIIN Wd6S 1T-INV00:8 4-vDD

SINVXT ONIIFINIONT STION

SINVXT ONIIFINIONT STION

| | L uvam

L ddV 'NHL

ONILITN FONVNIALNIVIN DINS S AdV 'SANL
woq uebiyoy oanf vsn ¥ 4dV 'NOW

1102 — ATHIM dISIATY
HOVTESOASC]



[1/6tT/t

d-v wool[eg = d-v TIvd
[[BH 20UBULIOLId] SOAST = AQ

SWooy undd|y 0JUON = d-V NOW

4-V YO0O0[9AQ 10ATY = 4-V OY
va1y A1[[eD puelnd = DO

14 O-V slleH Hqiyxd = O~V Hd H-V swiooy Busoy J001A0 = H-Y O d-V swooy Suio|y A19[[eD pueIn = -V O
NOISSIS TVIINID Wd6S: 11-NV00-8 a5 1ivd
WOOY LNOAVIYL Nd6S- TT-NV00:8 NOOI@IVOd
dOVdS DNILIIN Wd6S-T1-NV00:8 qT11vd
LigIHXd Wd6S:11-NV00:8 O-d HY
o) NOILLVILSIOTY INd6S-11-NV00:8 Tdd 09 H MOHSIAVUL % NOLLNIANOD "J0SSV TV.LNIA IN S1 AdV THd

TVSIVIHTI NIdO

WJOI-INdOE:L

AV TVSIVIHTI INd9-INdOE € HdAd AVIOAd ANV SNOJ OML 6 TVIISSVID OSUD
VIV NOLLIIOTA Wd6S-11-NV00:8 Vo
2 JINNIA Nd6S: T1-INV00:8 VvV 11vd YINNIAQ NOLLINDQODTY YFTLNNTOA YALIOYL TIN
ar NOISSIS TVIINID NdST-L-NVO0E:9 g NOOITTvVE INTFAT INOL SNEHSV T
va ONILLFTN WdST-INV00:8 YV H3 JILVALLOW L3D
JOVdS ONILIIN Nd6S T11-NVY00:8 H-V 0DD
JOVdS ONILIIN Wd6S:11-NV00:8 4-v 0D
NOISSIS TVIINID Wd6S-11-NV00°8 a-d11vd
lnoxvadd Nd6S:T11-INV00:8 dSVHO
NOILVILSIOTY Wd6S-11-NV00:8 q4d O 11vd
LIGIHXT 65 11-NV00:8 J-8 H3 MOHSIAVIL 2 NOLLNIFANOD "D0SSV TV.LNIA IN ¥1 ddV ‘NHL
TVSYVIHTY WdOT-INdOE:L
TVSIVIHTY WNd9-NdOE: €
AV NI JAON WdTI-NV8 HdAd NPI0Ad ANV SNOT OM.L 6 TVIISSVTD OSAD
va dn 13§ Wd6S-11-NV00:8 V H3I JILVALLOW 13D
dDVdS ONILITN Wd6S T1-INV00:8 dSVHO
JOVdS ONILITN Wd6S 11-NV00:8 H-V 0D
dIVdS ONILFIN Wd6S:11-WV00:8 4-v DD
NOISSIS TVIINIO Wd6S-11-NV00:8 ao 1ivd
NOILVYLSIOFT Wd6S:TT-INV00:8 44 I 1T1vd
dNiLas Nd6S:11-NV00:8 J-d Hd MOHSIAVYL 2 NOLLNFANQD 'D0SSV TV.ILNId IN £1 ddV 'dam
1NO JAON WVTI- Nd0E:6
FONVARIOLIId Nd0£:6-NdO¢t L
TVSIVIHIY WdOE:S-INd0E:T
00Z'1 ANVANILLY 1§39 | AV NI JAON WdI-NV8 HdAd NVYWXORIE WIr :S3T4TS WOOIOINOHdWAS OSUD
NOILVYLSIOFY Nd6S:11-NV00:8 | NOLLONNA-Tdd Od HA

dn 13s

Nd6S:11-NV00:8

-4 HY

MOHSIAVYIL 2 NOLLNIANOD 'O0SSV TVINIA IN [AR:CLAEIINE

| | ol o

OI ddV 'NNS

1102 — ATAHIM dISIATYT

HIOVTRESOCAECL



11/62/€
d-v woodjjeq = -V T11vd
[[EH 20UBULIOLID] SOAYT = Ad

Swooy SunesA 0JUOA = (I-V NOIN

-V JOOLIBAQ JoARY = -V OY

raIY AIR[[ED pURID = DN

S O-V SIEH 1qxd = O-V HA H-V swooy Sunasiyl 0o9AQ = H-V O -V swooy Sunsa] AI|[en pueln = 4-V D
01440 Nd6S 11-INV00:8 O SSANISNdg
ONILITIN Nd6S: 11-INV00:8 4-V OO
NOISSIS TVIANTD Wd6S 11-AV00-8 qa711vd
LIFIHX3 Nd6S-11-INV00:8 ao1ivd FONTITINOD JIM NVOIHOIA TVNANNY 110T 07 ddV 'ddm
110 FAON WV I-INdO£01
FONVINIOIYad WdOE:01-INd8
AV NI JAON NdS-INV00:8 HdAd NOAE AAd ‘NOILVN JAI'T
SIWOOY LNOAVIIL Wd6S T1-INV00:8 H-O 099
JO1440 MOHS Nd6S 1I-INV00:8 vV T1vd
IDOVIOLS Nd6S TI-NV00:8 vV 13SOT10 LVvOD
ALINS DNIA3FF4LSvIIL Nd6S T I-INV00:8 WAQdd dSVHO
401440 Wd6S T1-INV00:-8 2 SSANISNd
ONILITN Wd6S:11-INV00:8 VDD
NOISSIS TVIINIO Nd6S T T-INV00:8 a11vd

LIGIHXH

OVIOLS
dNL3s
dOVIOLS

TvIN

Nd6S:11-INV00:8

Wd6S:11-INV00:8
Nd6S-11-INV00:8
Wd6S:11-NV00:8

Wd6S T1-NV00:8

ad 1ive

V 14SOT0 LVOD
WAQYd4d 3SVHO
321440 MOHS-V T1vd

FONTIFINOD DIM NVOIHIIN TVANNY 110

FINTITINOD JIM NVOIHIIN TVINNYV 110T

61 ddV 3Nl

81 AdV ‘NOW

NOISSIS TVIINID Wd6S:11-INV00:8 qg71Ive dOHSIOM STOOLSIANI
NAMOJ JviLl Nd6S 1 1-NV00:8 MOHSIAVIL % NOLLNIANOD 'D0SSV TV.LNIA IN L1 ddV ‘NS
100 JAON WVZI-WdOT
JONVINEOIITd WdOT ~ Nd8 HdAd
AV Lv3addn WdOE:L-INdL TIVH TV.LIDTY XVI0Ad ANV SNOJ OM.L 16 TVIISSVID OSID
NOISSIS TVIINID Nd6S 11-NV00:8 g 11vd dOHSXIOM STOOLSIANI
1nodvadd Wd6S:11-NV00:8 H-V 09D
JOVdS ONILITN Wd6S:11-NV00:8 4V OO
NOISSIS TVIINTD Wd6S-T11-NV00-8 aoT11ve
LNoJvIdd Wd6S:11-NV00:8 WOOI@Ivod
NOLLVYLSIOTY Nd6S:11-NV00:8 d4d -08 Hd
LIdIHX3 Wd6S:11-NV00:8 O-dHi
9} ! NOILLVYILSIDFY Nd6S:11-INV00:8 Jdd D T1vd MOHSIAVYL 2 NOLLNFANOD "D0SSV TV.INIA IN 91 YdV LVS
ONVINRONIAd WJOT —Nd8 HdAd
00T°1 FONVANILLY 183 A4 Lv3ddn NdOE:L-INdL TIVH TVLIDOTY AVI0Ad ANV SNOd OM.L -6 TVIISSVID OSIYD
NS WOYd Wd6S:11-NV00:8 v T11ve WOYd STTIH VMONTN 110T
LNOoJAvIdd Wd6S:11-NV00:8 H-V 09D
JOVdS ONILLITN Nd6S:11-NV00:8 ERAD]

110C — ATHIM AISIATYA
HOVTESCAECT



11/6T/¢

dn 1as
vd dn 138

I Y ]

a-v wooijjeqg = J-v 1T1vd
[IeH 2oueuLIOpdd SOAd = Ad
O-V SiteH 1qiyxg = DJ-V HY

Wd6S TT-INV00:8
Nd6S: 11-INV00-8

Swooy SunedA 20IUOW = 0-V NOW
H-V Swooy Sunss YOOIAQ = H-V O

4LINFD 'snd
ad Tivd

-V qOO[ISAQ 1A = -V OY

va1y A19][eD pueld = DD
J-V swooy Sunsojy A1o[[en pueld = J-V O

1107 SAVHSANIN ST UdV 'NOW

F17ATS A0 ¥FGYVE TFHL 4D VIIdO $Z AV ‘NNS

AV dn L3s d00:8-INV00:8 AD0d NOAT/HJAd F17IATS 40 IFGYVE THL 4D vViIddO
TvIN Nd6S:11-NV00-8 434 0D
NOISSIS TVIINID Wd6S:11-NV00:8 a-voo dOHSIOM STOOLSIANI
VAV NOLLIIOTd Wd6S:11-NV00:8 aj 11vd
0| YINNIA Nd6S:11-NV00-8 gv 11vd VIVD NOILLVANNO HLTVIH NNALDAdS £€C ¥dV 'LVS
NOISS3S TVIINID Nd6S:11-NV00-8 avoo dOHS>IOM STOOLSIANI

dN.L3as

WNd6$:11-NV00:8

andyv Tivd

VIVO NOLLVANNO4 HLTV3IH NNY¥.LO3dS

CC 44V Tdd

TVSIVIHTI WdOT-INdOE:L
AV TVSHVIHTI NdOoE:€-Nd I TTVH TV.LIOTI ANOHJWAS SAIdV ANVID
1NO FJAON WVI1-INd00:01
FONVINIOIIAd WdOT-INdOE:L
AV NI JAON WdS-INV00:8 HdAd INMOYE NOSHIVI NOLLVN JAIT
dn 13s d6S: 1T1-INV00:8 a-v oo dOHSXIOM STOOLSTANI

13NONVd

Nd00:01-NV00-L

d-v 11vd

SAAVYMY FDIAYIS JFMIN

1T 4dV 'NHL

ONILLIIN Nd6S: 11-NV00:8 V-Od TVYNOLLYNYT.LNI 9NH
SIWOOY LNOMVIYd Wd6S:11-NV00:8 H-D 009
dD14940 MOHS Wd6S:TI-NV00:8 vV 11vd
IDVAOLS WNd6S:11-NV00:8 Vv 14S0TO LVOD
dLINS ONIAIILLSVIIL Wd6S: 11-INV00:8 WaQdd I3SVHO
WOO0Y LNOJvIdd Nd6S:T1-AV00:8 H 009D

1102 — ATHdM dISIATY
HOVIESOAHCT



